PETITION FOR REVIEW

FACTS OF THE CASE 

The petitioner, John Wood, was a former employee ofPine Ridge Coal Company. The 

record will reflect that he was employed with that company for approximately 25 years as an 

underground coal miner. Mr. Wood retired from his employment on September 8, 2011. 

During his employment, he previously filed a workers' compensation claim for 

occupational pneumoconiosis in 2007, and was examined by the Occupational Pneumoconiosis 

Board on February 13, 2007. At that time, the Board did not make a diagnosis of occupational 

pneumoconiosis nor did they fmd any pulmonary impairment attributable to that disease. 

Accordingly, Mr. Wood was denied an award for occupational pneumoconiosis. 

Mr. Wood filed a subsequent claim for occupational pneumoconiosis on March 6, 2015. 

Mr. Wood's Physician's Report of Occupational Pneumoconiosis dated January 26,2015, signed 

by Dr. 1. Hadley, noted that he was diagnosed with occupational pneumoconiosis on November 

17, 2014. Dr. Hadley goes on to note that it was "unknown" if the claimant's capacity to work 

had been impeded by occupational pneumoconiosis. 

On April 24, 2015, the Claims Administrator rejected Mr. Wood's claim as untimely 

fIled. He timely protested that ruling. Following the litigation of the claim, the Administrative 

Law Judge, by Decision dated January 30, 2017, affirmed the Claims Administrator's prior 

ruling. The Administrative Law Judge, in affirming the rejection of the claim, speculated that 

Dr. Jagannath must have told Mr. Wood, sometime during his 20 years of medical care, that he 

had impairment due to his occupational pneumoconiosis. Mr. Wood appealed that Decision to 

the Workers' Compensation Board of Review which, by Order dated November 3, 2017, 

affirmed the aforesaid Decision. 



. 


ISSUES 

1. Did the Workers' Compensation Board of Review err as a matter of law and fact 

in failing to reverse the Administrative Law Judge's Decision of January 30, 2017, denying the 

claim? 

2. Did the Workers' Compensation Board of Review as a matter of law fail to weigh 

the evidence in this case in accordance with West Virginia Code §23-4-1g? 

ARGUMENT AND POfflTS OF AUTHOIDTY 

It was uncontroverted that the petitioner was employed as an underground coal miner for 

approximately 25 years. It is further uncontroverted that he was exposed daily to the hazards of 

occupational pneumoconiosis during his entire employment history. 

After the petitioner's examination with the Occupational Pneumoconiosis Board on 

February 13,2007, it was found that he did not have occupational pneumoconiosis by 

radiograph, nor did the Occupational Pneumoconiosis Board find any impairment with his 

pulmonary function or blood transfer. As this Honorable Court knows, the Occupational 

Pneumoconiosis Board has the sole and exclusive authority to determine if a claimant has an x

ray diagnosis of occupational pneumoconiosis and whether or not there is any pulmonary or gas 

transfer impairment which the Board can attribute to the claimant's disease. West Virginia Code 

§23-4-8c(a) [emphasis added]. As suc~ the employer's statement regarding his treatments with 

physician's prior to February 13,2007, are not relevant and should not be considered. 

West Virginia Code §23-4-15(b) sets forth the statute of limitations a claimant has to 

timely file a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis. It states as follows: 

"To entitle any employee to compensation for occupational 
pneumoconiosis under the provisions ofthis subsection, the 
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application for compensation shall be made on the fonn or fonns 
prescribed by the Insurance Commissioner, and filed with the 
Insurance Commissioner, private carrier or self-insured employer, 
whichever is applicable, within three years from and after the last 
day of the last continuous period of sixty days or more during 
which the employee was exposed to the hazards of occupational 
pneumoconiosis or within three years from and after a diagnosed 
impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known 
to the employee by a physichin and unless fIled within the three
year period, the right to compensation under this chapter is forever 
barred, such time limitation being hereby declared to be a 
condition of the right and hence jurisdictional, or, in the case of 
death, the application shall be fIled by the dependent of the 
employee within two years from and after the employee's death, 
and such time limitation is a condition of the right and hence 
jurisdictional." [emphasis added] 

The petitioner, with his application, submitted Dr. Jennifer Hadley's January 26,2015, 

Physician's Report of Occupational Pneumoconiosis. Dr. Hadley indicated that the petitioner 

had occupational pneumoconiosis based upon her examination on November 17, 2014. Dr. 

Hadley did not fInd that he had any diagnosed impainnent that would prohibit his return to 

gainful employment. As such, under West Virginia Code §23-4-15(b), the statute of limitations 

has not begun to run. 

The claimant was deposed on June 21, 2016. He testifIed that he was put on oxygen in 

2014. On cross-examination, at Page 27, Lines 9-17, the petitioner testifIed as follows: 

"Q Okay. Did any of your doctors that you have seen while 
you were working back in 2011 suggest to you that you 
were having any problems breathing and that you were 
impaired by coal dust or coal workers' pneumoconiosis? 

A I have no idea. 

Q If anybody told you, you don't have a recollection ofbeing 
told. Correct? 

A No." 
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The claimant further testified in his deposition regarding his treatment with Dr. 

Jagannath, who was his primary care physician for over 20 years. On cross-examination, Pages 

28-29, he testified as follows: 

"Q ...Do you recall being told at any time by any physician or 
any nurse in a physician's off that, based on your lung 
examination, that you had a diagnosed impairment due to 
occupational pneumoconiosis? 

A I'd say Doctor Jagannath has. 

Q And when would be the earliest time that he may have tolq 
you that? 

A That, I have no idea, 'cause I've gone to him for years. 
And we talk about so many different things. I just had him 
as a doctor here not too long ago for a folloWllp on some 
surgery I had. It didn't have nothing to do with coal 
mining. Well, my wife says it did. It was for my knees and 
my arteries. Now, I don't know if that had anything to do 
with-- I don't know what caused it. 

Q Sure. We'll go over your medical history in just a second. 
But so the record will be clear, you think Doctor Jagannath 
told you that you had impairment caused by coal dust or 
occupational pneumoconiosis. And you've seen him for--

A What is OP? 

Q Occupational pneumoconiosis. Coal workers' 
pneumoconiosis or Black Lung, as you --

A Black Lung, as I'd call it. 

Q -- refer to it. So when you --

A I would say for sure he has at one time or another. 

Q Okay. And you told Mr. Maroney you'd seen him for 
twenty years. Is that correct? 

A He was my family practitioner for quite some time." 
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There was absolutely no exact timeline regarding the date or year the claimant was told 

he had occupational pneumoconiosis as well as a diagnosed impairment due to that disease as 

required under the aforesaid statute to start the running of the statute of limitations set forth in 

West Virginia Code §23-4-15(b). Furthermore, it is interesting to note that the employer did not 

submit any medical records from any of the claimant's primary care physicians which 

documented a diagnosis of occupational pneumoconiosis or a diagnosed impainnent. The 

Administrative Law Judge, in his decision, merely speculated that the claimant was told that he 

occupational pneumoconiosis and a diagnosed impairment that placed him outside the statute of 

limitations. 

The Administrative Law Judge was in clear violation of West Virginia Code §23-4

4(l)g(a), which states as follows: 

"For all awards made on or after the effective date of the 
amendment and reenactment ofthis section during the year two 
thousand three, resolution of any issue raised in administering this 
chapter shall be based on a weighing of all evidence pertaining to 
the issue and a finding that a preponderance of the evidence 
supports the chosen manner ofresolution. The process of weighing 
evidence shall include, but not be limited to, an assessment of the 
relevance, credibility, materiality and reliability that the evidence 
possesses in the context of the issue presented. Under no 
circumstances will an issue be resolved by allowing certain 
evidence to be dispositive simply because it is reliable and is most 
favorable to a party's interests or position. If, after weighing all of 
the evidence regarding an issue in which a claimant has an interest, 
there is a finding that an equal amount of evidentiary weight exists 
favoring conflicting matters for resolution, the resolution that is 
most consistent with the claimant's position will be adopted." 

The Workers' Compensation Board ofReview violated this statutory provision in that he 

did not properly weigh the evidence in this case. The only credible evidence in this case was the 

report of Dr. Jennifer Hadley. It is clear from her report that the claim was timely filed. 
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By Workers' Compensation Board of Review clearly erred in affirming the 

Administrative Law Judge's Decision dated April 24, 2015. 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, the claimant respectfully asks this Honorable Court to reverse 

the Workers' Compensation Board ofReview's Order and find the claim timely filed.