I. NATURE OF THE PROCEEDING 'i :::1 ~:: ,:
~~~" ;;:l t-;~ .. ;' 
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This proceeding arises out of an appeal by the Petitioner John D. Wood from tfi~B;~d 

of Review's November 3, 2017 order. The Board of Review affinned the January 30, 2017 

decision of Administrative Law Judge's decision, which affirmed the denial of Petitioner's 

application for Occupational Pneumoconiosis benefits (hereafter "OP"), on the basis that the 

claim was not jurisdictionally timey filed pursuant to W.Va. Code § 23-4-15(b)(2010).

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

The Petitioner, is a 60-year old male who last worked as a shuttle coal operator at Pine 

Ridge Coal Company's Big Mt. # 16 operations on September 8, 2011. Petitioner retired effective 

July 1, 2012. However, Respondent's (hereafter "Employer") 1 employment records reflect 

petitioner's last actual work and alleged exposure to the hazards of excessive dust was on 

September 8, 2011. (Respondent's Appendix 1) 

The record shows that petitioner filed a prior OP claim and he was previously examined 

by the OP Board on April 11, 2002 (Claim No. 2002036237). Petitioner's flied with his 

application the December 10, 2001 chest x-ray report by Dr. Afzal Ahmed which included an 

impression of simple pneumoconiosis category p/p,lIl. The April 11, 2002 OP Board findings 

indicated the OP Board did not make a diagnosis of OP, since there was no x-ray abnormality or 

lung testing results showing impairment. 

In the instant, second OP claim, the claim administrator, by her April 24, 2015 order, 

denied the petitioner's application for OP untimely as it was received from petitioner's counsel's 

office on March 6, 2015. (Petitioner's Appendix 3) It was neither filed within 3 years following 

1 The Respondent is the Self-insured Employer Guaranty Pool administered by the West Virginia Insurance 
Commissioner. It is one of two statutory funds used for claims payment obligations caused by a self-insured 
employer's default. The pool is funded by assessments charged to all self-insured employers authorized by the 
Insurance Commissioner to self-insure their mandatory workers' compensation coverage in West Virginia. See 
W.Va. Code §§23-2C-2(P) (2008) and 2C-3 (2016) and W.Va. C.S.R. §85-19 et.seq.(2004). 
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by a physician that he was impaired by OP. Petitioner protested the April 24,2015 ord;;: 

In support of his protest petitioner's deposition transcript was submitted from the June 21, 

2016 deposition. (petitioner's Appendix 1) Petitioner testified: 

Q. Now, when you filed that first claim, attached to it was an x-ray diagnosis of 

occupational pneumoconiosis. And you said several doctors have told you that you had 

occupational pneumoconiosis. Is that correct? 

A. I know Dr. Gray mentioned that to me. Yes. 

Q. And based on what your wife told you, you recall seeing Dr. Gray sometime in the 

1990s. Is that correct? 

A. Seems like it, yeah. 

(June 21,2016, deposition transcript, p.21) ld. 

Petitioner spent the majority of his deposition testifying about his coal mine and other 

employment history. He stated he filed the claim because he had a hard time breathing. (June 21, 

2016, deposition transcript p.21) ld. 

Petitioner stated he saw Dr. Gray in the 1990s and Dr. Dr. Al-Asadi in 2014 and that Dr. 

Jagannath prescribed oxygen. (June 21, 2016, deposition transcript p.22-24) When asked if he 

recalled being told of impairment due to OP, he testified that Dr. Jagannath had told him. 

Petitioner testified Dr. Jagannath was his family doctor for over twenty years. (June 21, 2016, 

deposition transcript p.28-29) ld. 

The January 30, 2017, Administrative Law Judge Decision affirmed the claim 

administrator's order of April 24, 2015. (Petitioner's Appendix 7 & 8) The adjudicator 

detennined a diagnosed impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known to the 
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petitioner by a physician more than three-years prior to filing this latest claim for Jicuiji~; 11 
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pneumoconiosis benefits in light of the extensive 20 year-term of medical treatment p~..Ji~_iWbX:~( 
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Dr. Jagannath. Therefore, the adjudicator found that petitioner had not established by a 

preponderance of the evidence that his application filed on March 6, 2015, was timely filed 

under W.Va. Code §23~4~15(b)(2010). 

In its November 3, 2017 appeal decision, the Board of Review determined to affirm the 

January 30, 2017 decision ofthe Office ofJudges. (Petitioner's Appendix 6) However, the Board 

ofReview did not adopt the administrative Law Judge's finding of Fact No.9 nor did it adopt the 

Office of Judge's Discussion Section. The Board of Review that neither of the statutory criteria 

enumerated within W.Va. Code§234·15(b) were met by Petitioner's evidence below and that the 

claim must be rejected. 

III. ISSUE 

WHETHER THE BOARD OF REVIEW WAS CLEARLY 
WRONG TO AFIRM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW 
JUDGE'S DECISION DATED JANUARY 30,2017. 

IV. ARGUMENT 

The Board of Review was not clearly wrong by affirming the decision from the 

administrative law judge which in turn affirmed the claim administrator's April 24, 2015 order. 

The Board of Review followed its statutory mandated standard for review and correctly affirmed 

the underlying decision of the Administrative Law Judge. Neither the Board of Review nor the 

administrative law judge committed error of law nor did they materially misstate or 

mischaracterize the evidentiary record. 

It is undisputed that the Petitioner's claim was not filed within three years from and after 

the last day of the last continuous exposure of sixty days or more during which the employee was 
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filed by Petitioner's counsel. Petitioner's Appendix, Ex. 8) 

It is equally undisputed that Petitioner did not present any documentary evidence to 

support whether his claim was jurisdictionally timely under W.Va. Code § 23-4-15 (b); rather, he 

relies on his testimony which his counsel argues fails to establish evidence that the Petitioner has 

knowledge that he was impaired by the hazards of coal dust or occupational pneumoconiosis and 

that this was provided to him as required by a physician. 

Petitioner arglies that the Office of Judges violated the evidentiary standard mandated by 

W.Va. Code §23-4-1g (2005). Petitioner's argument fails. Clearly, the Petitioner may not 

demonstrate that he had a precise, historically accurate recall of dates but he credibly testified 

that he knew he had been informed that he had an impairment due to black lung and that Dr. 

Jagannath told him that at some point during approximately twenty years of treatment. Petitioner 

urges that the testimony is not sufficient to establish actual knowledge of impairment caused by 

OP because Petitioner failed to indicate when that knowledge was obtained. Quite clearly, 

Petitioner did not indicate that he learned he had impairment within the three years prior to his 

filing the claim in 2016. 

When reviewing a decision of the Board of Review, the Supreme Court of Appeals shall 

consider the record provided by the Board and give deference to the Board's findings, reasoning 

and conclusions, in accordance with subsections (c) and (d) of this section. W.Va. Code § 23-5

15 (b) 

If the decision of the Board effectively represents an affIrmation of a prior ruling by both 

the commissioner or the Office of Judges that was entered on the same issue in the same claim, 

the decision of the Board may be reversed or modifIed by the Supreme Court of Appeals only if 
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mischaracterization of particular components of the evidentiary record. W.Va. Code '§ 23-5-15 

(c) The Board of Review is mandated to reverse a final order only if the substantial rights of the 

Petitioner have been prejudiced because the Administrative Law Judge's findings are (1) in 

violation of statutory provisions; (2) in excess of the statutory authority or jurisdiction of the 

Administrative Law Judge; (3) made upon unlawful procedures; (4) affected by other error of 

law; (5) clearly wrong in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evidence on the whole 

record; or (6) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly 

unwarranted exercise of discretion W. Va. Code § 23-5-12(b)(2005). 

The Board of Review affirmed the Administrative law judge's decision which upheld 

the rejection of the OP claim as untimely filed. This was no error in the Board of Review 

detennination to affirm the administrative law judge. The Board of Review determination was 

proper. 

V. CONCLUSION 

The Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court REJECT -the Petitioner's 

appeal and AFFIRM -the Board of Review's order dated November 3,2017.